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	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202009136 - Early Childhood Mental Health Consultation Services

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, 
Office of Child and Family Services

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	September 18, 2020, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	September 24, 2020

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	October 2, 2020, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov



Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
[bookmark: _Hlk50974092]
	[bookmark: _Hlk48905851]1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 15, G.2
	[bookmark: _Hlk51587029]The limitation of 1 clinician to provide all required services for all educational institutions per Region allowed by the contract raise concerns about capacity. How many youth per year per Region will be expected to be served? 

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder(s) shall ensure the ECCP Consultant conducts at least twenty-three (23) Child-specific Interventions and eleven (11) Core-Classroom Services Interventions annually. 



	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What is the expectation of the awarded agency once capacity is reached?

	
	Answer

	
	Once capacity is reached, the awarded Bidder(s) shall work with the Department to develop a waitlist for services.



	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	How are youth prioritized and by whom?  

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder(s) shall work with the Department to identify the priority for referrals for Child-specific, Core-classroom, and Comprehensive Intensive Education Setting-based Consultation services.




	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What methods should be used to determine the priority of cases if resources are limited?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer of question 3 of this document.



	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What is the current anticipated demand for this service?

	
	Answer

	
	As these are new services driven from L.D. 997, the Department does not know what the anticipated demand for these services will be.



	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 10, II.B
	[bookmark: _Hlk51587078]Are any of the meetings the clinician will be expected to participate in occur off site from the educational facility, and if so, what are some examples of where meetings may occur?

	
	Answer

	
	[bookmark: _Hlk51739799]The awarded Bidder(s) shall ensure the ECCP Consultants attend local Community Collaborative meetings related to early childhood education and infant mental health, which may take place in various locations, including libraries, Early Care and Education Centers, mental health provider offices, schools, or other locations. The Consultant may also meet with family members in their home or a community-based setting, such as a library.



	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Can you describe the relationship between this position and the special education department overseeing the IEP developed within the school?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder(s) shall ensure the ECCP Consultant works collaboratively and provides consultation on early childhood mental health with various stakeholders across settings where young Children receive care and education, including special education departments. 





	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 10, Part II.A
	Can the ‘office’ be a home-based office? For example, can the clinician be based out of their home considering their home meets the above requirements?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder(s) are required to meet the requirement outlined in Part II.A.2. of the RFP. 



	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 10, Part II.A
	a. Can you clarify ‘potential Early Care and Education Setting within the Bidder’s coverage area’? 
b. Is every Early Care and Educational Setting considered within the service? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to the Term with Definitions of “Early Care” and “Education Setting” within the of the RFP. It is at the awarded Bidder’s discretion to determine the Early Care and Education Settings that are eligible for the services in the specified area.
b. Refer to the answer to question 9.a. of this document.



	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 10, Part II.A
	Have certain educational facilities been identified as a part of this pilot? If so, which schools?

	
	Answer

	
	No, the awarded Bidder(s) shall determine which educational facilities will receive services under the ECCP model.



	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 10, Part II.A
	a. Is every Early Care and Education Setting considered an appropriate venue for service delivery/meet the referral expectations? 
b. If so, considering there is only one consultant/clinician per county identified for the pilot, how would one clinician be able to be based in an area that serves every educational facility within a 1-2 hour radius, as some counties within the pilot are geographically larger than others?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Any Early Care and Education Setting in the area served by the awarded Bidder(s) could potentially be an appropriate venue for service delivery according to the service description as described in the RFP.
b. It is at the awarded Bidder(s) discretion to determine which Early Care and Education Settings receive services within the requirements of the RFP.



	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 16, H.1.a.
	Is the cost of the training absorbed by the Department or an expense the awarded needs to absorb?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will be responsible for the cost of training outlined in Part II.H.1. of the RFP.



	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 16, H.1.a.
	What is the cost of the training?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 12 of this document.



	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 16, H.1.a.

	a. [bookmark: _Hlk51587228]What is the plan for the delivery of the training during staff turnover? 
b. Will there be a train the trainer component, or will the Department offer the training more than once each year?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The awarded Bidder(s) shall work with the Department on a training plan for any new staff. Future training may take place remotely or in-person depending on need.
b. Refer to the answer to question 14.a. of this document.



	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Who is the referral source for this service?

	
	Answer

	
	· Early Care and Education Settings may self-refer for Child-Specific, Core-Classroom and Comprehensive Intensive Site-based consultation services. 
· Teachers, Program Directors, Parents, Guardians, Resource Parents and/or OCFS caseworkers may refer for Child-Specific Consultation in Early Care and Education Settings. 
· Parent/guardian consent is required for Child-Specific Consultation Services.





	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Aside from the child needing to be in the custody of the Department and between the ages of birth through age 8, what are any additional eligibility requirements?

	
	Answer

	
	Children do not need to be involved in Child Welfare Services through OCFS to be eligible for the service through Early Care and Education Settings. 

Any Child between the ages birth to eight (8) who is participating in an Early Care and Education Setting and who is experiencing behavioral, social, or relational concerns in the Early Care and Education Setting is eligible for the Child-Specific Consultation Service. 



	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	[bookmark: _Hlk51587291]Who determines eligibility?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder(s) shall determine eligibility for services in conjunction with the Department’s ECCP Program Manager.



	18
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 16, H. 1.c-e.
	Is this consultation to ensure program fidelity assumed by the Department or a cost the awarded agency needs to absorb? If so, what is the anticipated cost of the consultation?

	
	Answer

	
	Consultation and any other measures as required for fidelity monitoring are provided by the Department.



	19
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 16.H.d.
	Are the associated costs for the quarterly in-person trainings, both the actual training cost and any associated travel costs, assumed by the Department or are they costs the awarded agency needs to absorb? If so, what is the actual training cost of the quarterly training?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will assume the costs of training. Travel costs shall be budgeted by the awarded Bidder(s).





	20
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	[bookmark: _Hlk51587351]Can services be provided to the child/family during the summer in the home of the resource family pending the clinical need and interest in the service during the summer months? If not, is this anticipated to be a position that is in operation only during the academic school year?

	
	Answer

	
	ECCP Services shall be offered year-round. 



	21
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	[bookmark: _Hlk51587384]What occurs in the situation in which the resource parent is not interested in the service?

	
	Answer

	
	ECCP is a voluntary service. 



	22
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What occurs in the situation in which a school/teacher is not interested in the service?

	
	Answer

	
	ECCP is a voluntary service.



	23
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 12, Part II, 3.B.c.ii.
	Can you clarify direct support?

	
	Answer

	
	Direct support may consist of consultation using mental health consultation delivery strategies including, but not limited to, coaching, reflective practice, modeling, and provision of information to the teacher(s) in support of the Action Plan.



	24
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 12, Part II, 3.B.c.ii.
	Is the clinician responsible for the safety and well-being of the child in the classroom, i.e. responsible for managing the child’s behavior and ensuring safety of each student in the classroom (i.e. does the clinician have the same responsibilities of the teacher)?

	
	Answer

	
	No. However, ECCP Consultants are mandated reporters under Maine law and are required to report all suspected or observed instances of abuse and/or neglect of children.





	25
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 13, D.1
	Can you clarify EIS?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the Definition of ECCP Information Systems within the RFP.


	
	26
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	[bookmark: _Hlk51587424]
	Did not provide
	Where are notes/records to be maintained by the clinician?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder(s) shall ensure records are maintained in the ECCP Information System (EIS) as well as within the Agency as required by the Department’s, Division of Licensing and Certification laws and rules



	27
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	[bookmark: _Hlk51587463]Will schools have access to the child’s records that are maintained by the clinician? If so, how will they access the records?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder(s) shall ensure no information is shared or discussed with without a signed release of information from the parent or legal guardian. 



	28
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 14.F
	Is finger printing required?

	
	Answer

	
	No.



	29
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	[bookmark: _Hlk51587490]Is the agency expected to provide coverage when the clinician/consultant is on vacation to ensure the availability of a clinician during each academic school day? If so, can ECCP clinicians from other counties (in situations in which the agency has multiple contracts for multiple regions) cover for one another?

	
	Answer

	
	No.  However, the awarded Bidder shall ensure coverage for unexpected or extended absence by the ECCP Consultant.





	30
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	[bookmark: _Hlk51587539]In the event schools are not providing in classroom education due to COVID and classes are instead via Zoom, is it an option for classroom observation to occur virtually with the clinician joining into Zoom classes to observe interaction between the child and teacher?

	
	Answer

	
	ECCP has developed a teleconsultation model of services in the event where the Maine ECCP Consultant is not able to attend in-person meetings due to COVID restrictions. The preferred approach is to provide the consultation services in person whenever possible.



	31
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Can participation in IEP’s and other related school meetings requiring the clinician occur via Zoom and meet the guidelines of service delivery expectations for the service in the event the meeting is occurring via Zoom due to COVID?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 30 of this document.



	32
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 16, H.1.a.
	Will all required ECCP trainings be made available via Zoom during the pandemic?

	
	Answer

	
	Initial training (anticipated in December 2020) will be done in-person in Augusta following all CDC guidelines for social distancing and group gatherings. Additional training may be held remotely if necessary due to health and safety guidelines.



	33
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 10, Part II.B.1. 
	What is the cost to implementing the manualized ECCP model to fidelity? 

	
	Answer

	
	The Department is purchasing the model, the cost for the ECCP model to fidelity shall not be included in the Bidder proposed cost.



	34
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 10, Part II.B.1. 
	What is the cost to the referenced fidelity model?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 33 of this document.



	35
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 10, Part II.B.1. 
	Is there another funding mechanism for the model or should it be included in the proposed rate for the service?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 33 of this document.



	36
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 10, Part II.B.1. 
	Can you clarify the start date in which services are to begin? The submission deadline for the proposal is not until 10/2/2020, and the RFP states services are to begin in November of 2020. How soon after notification of award will the awarded agency be expected to begin services (with the understanding that initial awards are conditional during the appeal process following a conditional award limiting the agency’s ability to proceed with start-up)?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department anticipates contracts to begin on 11/1/2020 with the ECCP service model to be implemented on or about December 2020. 


[bookmark: _Hlk51746712]
	37
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	[bookmark: _Hlk51682680]
	Did not provide
	How is the agency reimbursed for service delivery?

	
	Answer

	
	The contract(s) resulting from this RFP will be based upon a cost settle agreement.

The rules and regulations regarding the cost principles are defined in 2 CFR 200. In addition, the Maine Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) developed the Maine Uniform Accounting and Auditing Practices for Community Agencies, revised July 1, 2012 (MAAP IV) to establish consistent accounting, auditing, and administrative regulations for community agencies receiving financial assistance in the form of agreements with the DHHS. MAAP IV defines cost sharing settlement as a cost sharing agreement where multiple funding sources share in the expense of a funded service. 

· A PDF of MAAP IV is attached. 
· 2 CFR 200 is available online at the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations 

The service contract will define payment terms for the cost-settled agreement. The Rider F-1 ASF Proforma in the contract will illustrate the format to be followed at time of agreement closeout.





	38
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Is it a cost per month per child, per unit of service, etc.?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 37 of this document.



	39
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	If it is per unit, what is the definition of a unit?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 37 of this document.



	40
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What is the claim reimbursement procedure for this particular service?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 37 of this document.



	41
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Is the service cost settled?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.



	42
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What are the page limit requirements for the proposal? 

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion.



	43
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Are the required attachments included in the page limit?

	
	Answer

	
	There are no page limit requirements. 





	44
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Can you please clarify the formatting requirements including single/double-spaced, font and margins?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion.



	45
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Is there a page limit to Appendix C (Qualifications and Experience form)?

	
	Answer

	
	No.



	46
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 7, Part I.A.
	a. Since this Act was enacted in June of 2019, has the service been provided to date? 
b. If so, who has been the provider and in what areas and to what extent has it been provided?
c. If not, why the delay in implementation of the service?

	
	Answer

	
	a. No.
b. N/A
c. The Department declines to respond.



	47
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Have educational institutions been informed of this up and coming service?  If so, how have they been informed and to what extent have they been involved in the planning?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department has informed and invited feedback from various stakeholders, including Early Care and Education Programs, about the plan to implement the ECCP model.



	48
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Is the child eligible for MaineCare services concurrently with this service (i.e. case management, HCT, Section 28, etc.)?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.





	49
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, B, 1; page 10
	Please clarify the expectation that services are to begin in November 2020, given the submission deadline or October 2, 2020, needed time for review and award notifications, and the amount of time needed for agencies to become trained in the ECCP model. What level of services are required to begin in November 2020 given these requirements?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 36 of this document.
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